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continued obstruction of the parent child relationship between Isabella Miller-Jenkins and 
Janet Jenkins, the parties conspired to kidnap Isabella Miller-Jenkins and ensure her 
detention outside of the United States, beyond the reach of either the Vermont or the 
Virginia Courts. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. Civil RICO This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 
1964(a) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331. Venue is proper in this forum pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 
1965(a) & (b), and 28 U.S.C. § 1391(a) & (b). Venue and personal jurisdiction is 
proper under section 1965(a) because Defendants reside, are found, have an agent, or 
transact their affairs in this District. Venue and personal jurisdiction is also proper 
under § 1965(b) in this forum because the ends of justice require that any defendant 
residing in another District be brought before this Court. Venue is proper under § 
1391(a) & (b) in that a substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the 
claim occurred in this District. Venue is also proper under principles of pendent venue 
because all claims arise out of the same nucleus of operative facts. 

2. Personal jurisdiction. Venue is appropriate in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 
1391(a), as a substantial part of the events giving rise to the claims occurred in this 
district, and Defendants are subject to personal jurisdiction in this district, having had 
more than minimum contacts with Vermont, as their conduct and connection with 
Vermont are such that they should reasonably anticipate being haled into Court here. 

3. Diversity Jurisdiction: With respect to the intentional tort of kidnapping/parental 
abduction this is an action brought pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332 between citizens of 
different states. The amount in controversy exceeds $75,000. Venue is proper in this 
district as jurisdiction is founded on diversity of citizenship, and a substantial part of 
the events giving rise to the claim occurred within the State of Vermont. 

4. Violation of Civil Rights: This Court has original jurisdiction over actions arising 
under 42 U.S.C. §§1985 and 1986 pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1343, and a substantial part 
of the events underlying the claim, including the equal protection afforded to the 
Plaintiffs under Vermont's Civil Union Statute, arose in Vermont. 

PARTIES 

5. Janet Jenkins: Plaintiff Janet Jenkins is a.51 363.73 1_0 1 tj
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continues to abduct Plaintifflsabella Miller-Jenkins in knowing violation of the orders 
of the Vermont Family Court, but she has sufficient ties to the State of Vermont, 
including obtaining a civil union and the dissolution of same in Vermont and 
longstanding participation in litigation in the State ofVermont regarding parental 
rights of Plaintiff Isabella Miller-Jenkins, to subject her to the personal jurisdiction of 
this Court. 

8. Kenneth L. Miller: Defendant Kenneth Miller is a resident of the State of Virginia, 
City of Stuart's Draft. Kenneth Miller has sufficient contacts with the State of 
Vermont to subject him to the personal jurisdiction of this Court, including his 
personal appearance for criminal charges in Vermont arising from his participation in 
the kidnapping of Isabella Miller-Jenkins. 

9. Timothy Miller: Defendant Timothy Miller is a resident of Managua, Nicaragua and 
Crossville, Tennessee. He has sufficient ties to Vermont, including personal 
appearance in Vermont for criminal charges related to the kidnapping of Isabella 
Miller-Jenkins to subject him to the jurisdiction of this Court. 

10. Andrew Yoder: Defendant Andrew Yoder is a resident of the State of Ohio and is and 
employee/agent of Christian Aid Ministries, Inc., in relation to the claims set forth 
herein, with sufficient ties to the State of Vermont, including personal appearance for 
testimony in criminal proceedings, to subject him to the jurisdiction of this Court. 

11. Christian Aid Ministries, Inc.: Defendant Christian Aid Ministries, Inc. ("CAM") is an 
Ohio corporation that employs pastors and relief workers around the world, including 
in the United States (including Vermont) and Nicaragua and whose activities include 
evangelizing, as well 
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15. Liberty University School of Law: Defendant Liberty University School of Law is a 
purported educational institution organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the 
CommonwealthofVirginia and with a principal place of business in Lynchburg, 
Virginia, whose conduct has an impact on interstate commerce and whose contacts 
with Vermont include provision of advice, support and counsel to Defendant Lisa 
Miller in litigation in the Courts of Vermont, and solicitation of money and student 
applications within Vermont via the internet and other media, sufficient to submit itself 
to the jurisdiction of this Court. Liberty University holds itself out as the world's 
largest Evangelical Christian University, and was founded by the late Jerry Falwell. 
Liberty's current President is Jerry Falwell, Jr. 

16. Thomas Road Baptist Church Inc.: Defendant Thomas Road Baptist Church, Inc. 
("TRBC") is a corporation organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia and with a principal place of business in Lynchburg, 
Virginia, with sufficient contacts with the State of Vermont to subject it to jurisdiction 
in this Court, including solicitation of donations from residents of Vermont, and 
organization of prayer meetings at the Vermont Family Courts. Liberty University is 
held out as a "related a 
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Isabella and Janet Jenkins. Lisa Miller was found in contempt of the Vermont Court 
orders starting in 2004. Lisa Miller discussed her custody case with Defendant Wright 
on an ongoing basis between 2004 and 2009. 

21. Since 2004, there have been numerous instances when Janet Jenkins was entitled to 
lawful custody of Isabella in the State of Vermont, including during vacations, 
holidays and weekends and continuously since January 1, 2010 when full physical and 
legal responsibilities for Isabella were transferred to Jenkins from Defendant Miller. 
However, since 2008, Jenkins and Isabella have only seen each other on two 
occasions. Both the Rutland, Vermont Family Court, and the juvenile courts in 
Virginia which registered and enforced the Vermont orders, have found Lisa Miller in 
contempt and imposed sanctions for her conduct. Despite these sanctions, Lisa Miller 
continued to ignore the Court's orders with the assistance and encouragement of the 
Co-Defendants. Since January 2010 Isabella has been listed as missing by the 
National Center for Missing and Exploited Children, the victim of a family abduction. 

2004-2008 
22. Defendant Linda Wall, a Virginia anti-gay activist and Thomas Road Baptist Church 

member, stated that in 2004 she was contacted by attorney Rena Lindevaldsen, of 
Liberty University School of Law and was asked to meet with Lisa Miller to screen her 
for representation by lawyers working at Liberty University School of Law and its 
related law firm, Liberty Counsel, LLC. After this screening, Lisa Miller was accepted 
for representation by Liberty University attorneys, and also formed a friendship with 
Defendant Wall. Lisa Miller's lead attorneys were Dean of the Law School Mathew 
Staver, and Rena Lindevaldsen, a law professor there. 

23. At the time of the final contested hearing to dissolve the civil union, which due to 
numerous appeals did not occur until April 2007, Lisa Miller testified that in the futuhool Lil12.7985 22 Tc 20 Td
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Academy, Lisa Miller would also give assemblies to students to discuss her legal 
battle. 

26. Also in the spring of2008, Lisa Miller and Defendant Wall met to discuss what Lisa 
Miller should do "knowing that Virginia" law was not going to prevent Isabella from 
having contact with Plaintiff Jenkins. At this time, Appellate Courts in Vermont and 
Virginia had affirmed Janet Jenkins' parental rights. Upon information and belief, 
Wall and Miller decided and agreed as early as June of2008 that Lisa Miller should 
flee with Isabella. 

27. The Protect Isabella Coalition was organized in the spring of2008 in Lynchburg by 
Wall and Miller and other church agents, including Deborah Thurman, who ran a 
woman's group at TRBC. The purpose of the Protect Isabella Coalition ("PIC") was to 
prevent court ordered contact between Isabella Miller-Jenkins and Janet Jenkins .. 
Upon information and belief, the President of Liberty University, Jerry Falwell, Jr. 
donated substantial sums to the PIC to enable it to produce television and radio 
commercials condemning the parent-child contact between Janet Jenkins and Isabella 
Miller-Jenkins as an act of tyranny. Lisa Miller's attorneys had established a Facebook 
site and other social media to solicit donations to their organization on behalf of Lisa 
Miller, and the Facebook site was also used to promote the activities of Lisa Miller and 
the PIC. 

2009 
28. During her employment at TRBC and participation in the PIC, Lisa Miller continued to 

be in contempt during court ordered visitation time, and threatened future acts of 
custodial interference. Lisa Miller appeared on a radio program called "Janet 
Parshall's America" and threatened that she would not comply with a court's order to 
transfer legal and physical rights and responsibilities to Janet Jenkins. 

29. On May 27, 2009, Janet Jenkins filed a Motion to Modify Parental Rights and 
Responsibilities in the Vermont Family Court. This Motion requested a transfer of 
custody to Plaintiff Jenkins due to Lisa Miller's continued interference with court 
ordered visitation. On May 29, 2009 Lisa Miller made contact with Philip Zodhiates, a 
resident of made 
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as the administrator of the Face book site called "Only One Mommy" founded by 
Lindevaldsen to solicit donations and support for the case. 

44. On November 20, 2009, the day that the Order was issued transferring custody, 
Kenneth Miller made a phone call to Timothy Miller in Nicaragua. Kenneth Miller 
also contacted Defendant Douglas Wright of Keystone Baptist Church. He asked 
Defendant Wright to assist in disposing of Lisa Miller's belongings from her apartment 
in Virginia. Defendant Wright assisted Kenneth Miller, and did not notify the police 
that Lisa had departed several months previously. 

45. On December 30, 2009 after the news of Lisa and Isabella's disappearance broke, 
Deborah Thurman made a statement on her internet blog, which she linked the to the 
Only One Mommy site. She stated, inter alia: 

So, the blogosphere and the mainstream media are now abuzz with the 
news that- gasp! -Lisa and Isabella Miller are nowhere to be found, just days 
before the court-mandated transfer of custody of7-year-old Isabella to Janet 
Jenkins. Ya reckon? 

And in conclusion, wrote: 

The majority of Americans overwhelmingly support traditional marriage. If the 
tyrannical minority wants to push against that, it can and will be met with civil 
disobedience. There is no other way. 

46. This threat was removed from the internet after Plaintiff Jenkins printed it out and 
brought it to the police. 

47. Lisa Miller's attorneys Mathew Staver and Rena Lindevaldsen also routinely 
instructed their Law School students that the correct course of action for a person in 
Lisa Miller's situation would be to engage in "civil disobedience" and defy court 
orders. 

48. Also in 2009, TRBC Head Pastor Jonathan Falwell was among several religious 
leaders who made a call for "Christian civil disobedience" and published a public 
declaration, known as The Manhattan Declaration stating that they: 

"will not comply with any edict that purports to compel our institutions to 
participate in abortions, embryo-destructive research, assisted suicide and 
euthanasia, or any other anti-life act; nor will we bend to any rule purporting to 
force us to bless immoral sexual partnerships, treat them as marriages or the 
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Vermont's law giving rights to members of same-sex families. The TRBC and Liberty 
University School of Law through its public declaration promoted, condoned and 
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January 2010, and other TRBC members maintained a post office box for donations to 
"Friends of Lisa Miller." Since the fall of2009, Lisa Miller has received aid from the 
Beachy Amish-Mennonite Brethren, including through Christian Aid Ministries, Inc. 
to continue her abduction of Isabella. Lisa Miller worked in the Managua home of 
Pastor Timothy Miller. Timothy Miller was arrested for aiding and abetting the 
kidnapping of Isabella Miller-Jenkins in April of 2011. In November, 2011, charges 
were dismissed when he agreed to provide truthful testimony for the United States 
Government. 

55. At the time of Timothy Miller's arrest Isabella was living with Lisa in Jinotega, 
Nicaragua, where Lisa was teaching in a 
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department who were under his supervision. To this day, Victoria Hyden is still an 
employee of the law school, even 
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people kindly extended them a helping hand But now this case has grown and quite 
a few congregations have been affected 2 

62. Based on the foregoing, all of the Defendants named herein, in both their 
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COUNT TWO- VIOLATION OF THE RACKETEER INFLUENCE AND 
CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT 

Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c) 

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference paragraphs 1 through 64 as though fully set forth 
herein. 

65. Defendant Kenneth Miller is a person within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961(3). 

66. Defendant committed acts of racketeering within the meaning of 18 U.S.C. § 1961, as 
follows: 

a. Acts or threats involving kidnapping which are chargeable as such under 
Vermont law (13 V.S.A. 2451, 13 V.S.A. 2405(a)(2)) and many other 
state laws throughout the United States, including aiding and abetting 
kidnapping for the aforementioned purpose of violating the September 
2009 custody order and the November 20, 2010 custody order. 

b. Violations of 18 U.S.C. § 1956, afore
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aforementioned pattern of racketeering activity, including serving as a leader and 
pastor within two of the Brotherhood's churches, and within the Brotherhood in 
general. 

70. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant's violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(c), 
Plaintiffs have suffered injury to their business or property, including legal fees, 
investigative fees, court costs, and unpaid child support obligations, and deprivation of 
personal property 

COUNT THREE- VIOLATION OF THE RACKETEER INFLUENCE AND 
CORRUPT ORGANIZATIONS ACT 

Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1962(d) 

Plaintiffs incorporate by reference paragraphs ACT 
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of Response Unlimited, Inc., Victoria Hyden, flk/a Victoria Zodhiates, individually 
and as an agent of Response Unlimited, Inc. and Liberty University School of Law, 
Kenneth Miller, Timothy 



I~AN(:;.RoCK SPr RRY 

& '-VooL LLP 

81. Plaintiff Isabella Miller-Jenkins has also suffered the loss of emotional and financial 
support from her mother, Janet Jenkins. Isabella has a property interest in child support 
from one or both parents based on her needs and best interests. The child support 

i • previously due to the custodial parent for Isabella's care was approximately $250 per 
month. This deprivation continues today and is expected to continue indefinitely into 
the future. In addition to the property right of child support, on information and belief, 
Isabella is currently being deprived of an education, medical and dental care and the 
support of her extended family, including grandparents Ruth and Claude Jenkins. All 
of these factors currently and will in the future result in an injury to Isabella's property 
and future business and employment. 

82. Plaintiffs request that treble damages be awarded, as permitted under the RICO Statute 
and based on the outrageous conduct of the Defendants. 

83. Plaintiffs request compensatory and punitive damages against Defendants for the 
intentional tort of kidnapping Isabella and for violations of the Plaintiffs civil rights. 

JURY DEMAND 

Plaintiffs request a jury trial on factual issues and the required fee has or will be paid. 

PRAYER 

For the above reasons, Plaintiffs request that the named Defendants be made to appear 
herein and be held liable as alleged herein and that judgment be entered in the Plaintiffs 
favor against the Defendants in the following particulars: 

1. An order that the Defendants cease their unlawful activities immediately and 
return Isabella Miller-Jenkins to the United States. 

2. Actual and punitive damages as requested herein. 
3. Attorney's fees and expert witness fees. 
4. Costs of court and any other relief to which the Plaintiffs are justly entitled. 

DATED AT MIDDLEBURY, VERMONT this /) flaay of August, 2012 

579061 

~' Sarah Star, Esq. 
Sarah R. Star, Esq., Attorney and Counselor at Law, P.C. 
P.O. Box 106 
Middlebury, VT 05753 

~,-q-.--------
Langrock Sperry and Wool, LLP. 
111 S. Pleasant Street, PO Drawer 351 
Middlebury, VT 05753-0351 
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